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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NAMITHA REAL ESTATES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1.  We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Namitha
Real Estates Private Limited (the”Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31 March, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information. (Hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS financial statements”).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2023 give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the company as at 31% March, 2023, its losses, changes in equity and its cash

flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion:

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The board report is expected to
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be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
When we read the report containing other information if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those

charged with governance.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements:

5. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

6. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

7. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial

reporting process.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements:

(ii)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements,
as a whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is as

follows:

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

(i) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the

financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
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10.

11.

conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure - A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extend applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive
Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
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€) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March

)

h)

2023 taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified
as on 31% March, 2023 from being appointed as directors in terms of section 164(2) of
the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal

financials controls with reference to financial statements.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16):In our opinion and according to the information & explanation given to us, the
company has not paid managerial remuneration during the year ended Mar31, 2023
and accordingly the limits for payment of managerial remuneration under Sec 197 of

the Act are not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;
ii. ~ The Company did not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.
iii. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
1v.

A. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company
to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
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Beneficiaries;

B. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, and

C. Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to
the notice that has caused them to believe that the representations under

sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material misstatement.

v.  During the year, the company neither declared nor paid any dividend. Hence
reporting on compliance with provisions of section 123 of the Act does not
arise.

vi.  Proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules,2014 for maintaining
books os account using accounting software which has a feature of recording
audit trail(edit log) facility is applicable to the company with effect from April
1,2023 and accordingly reporting under Rule 11(g) of companies( Audit and
Auditors) Rule, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March

31,2023
PLACE: BANGALORE FOR GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
DATE: Apl‘ll 27, 2023 Digitally signed by

BRAHMAV AR BRAHMAVAR GIRISH
GIRISH RAO g/:?e: 2023.04.27

22:08:49 +05'30"
Girish Rao B
Partner.
Membership No: 085745
FRN No.000934S
UDIN: 23085745BGYILZ7504
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”Annexure A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report referred to in clause 1 of paragraph on
the ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the
Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023:

Re: Namitha Real Estates Private Limited

a. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Tangible assets and intangible assets

b. Based on Verification of books of accounts of the company, no Intangible Assets are
held during the year.

c. The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Tangible assets
in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, The Company has
only Land under fixed assets and hence physical verification does not arise

d. Based on Verification of books of accounts of the company, We are of the opinion
that all the title deeds of the immovable properties disclosed in the financial
statements are in the name of the company

e. There is no revaluation done by the company of its property, plant and equipment
(including the right of use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year

£ In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, we have
not noticed any proceedings initiated against the company or pending against the
company for holding any benami property under the benami transaction (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 (450 of 1988) and rules made there under.
I
a The nature of companies operation does not warrant holding of any stocks. Accordingly
paragraph 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
b The reporting requirements under this sub clause is not applicable as the company is not
been sanctioned with working capital limits from banks or Financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets in excess of five crores at any point during the year.

IIT a Based on the verification of books of accounts, we have noticed that the company has not
made any investments in, Provided any guarantee or granted any loans or advances in the nature
of loans , secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties during the year

IV In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the company
has not granted any loan, made any investments, gave any guarantee or provided security in
connection with a loan to any other body corporate or person in contravention of section 185
and 186 of the Companies A ct,2013.

V According to the information and explanation given to us the company has not accepted
deposits from the public during the year and as such this clause is not applicable.

VI According to the information and explanation given to us the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for
the activities carried out by the Company, and hence this clause is not applicable.
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VII  a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in payment of
undisputed statutory dues including income tax, Professional tax and cess as applicable with
appropriate authorities. We are informed by the company that the provisions of Provident Fund
Act, Goods and service tax,Employee state insurance scheme, duty of customs, are not
applicable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us there are no disputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, Professional
tax and cess as applicable as at 31st March 2023.We are informed by the company that the
provisions of Provident Fund Act, Goods and service tax, Employee state insurance scheme,
duty of customs, are not applicable.

VII According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us We have not come across any instances of any transactions not recorded in the
books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the income tax act,1961 (43 of 1961).

IX a Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not defaulted in repayments of loans
or other borrowings or in the payment of interest during the year.

b Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not been declared as willful
defaulter by banks or financial institutions or other lenders.

¢ Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has applied the term loans for the
purpose for which it is taken

d Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the funds raised on short term basis have not been
utilized for long term purposes..

e Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet obligation of its subsidiaries or its associates or
joint ventures.

f Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, Joint ventures and associate
companies.

X a The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (Including debt instrument) during the year. Accordingly reporting requirements under
this paragraph of the order is not applicable.

b Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, the company has not made any prudential allotment
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or private placement of shares or convertible debentures( fully an partially or optionally
convertible) during the year

X1 a During the course of examination of the books and records of the company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have not come across any instance of fraud by
the company or on the company by its officers or employees of the company during the year.

b Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that, we have not come across any report under sub
section (12) of section 143 of the companies act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT
-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of companies ( Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the central
government

¢ Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the
management, We have not come across any instances of whistle blower complaints during
the year.

XII In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, reporting requirements under this paragraph
of the order is not applicable.

XIIT According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that all the transaction with the related
parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act.2013 and the details of
the transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as per applicable accounting
Standards.

XIV In our opinion and based on our examination, the company does not have an internal
audit system and is not required to have internal audit system as per the provisions of
companies act. As such reporting requirement is not applicable under this clause

XV  According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that the company has not entered into Non
cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, reporting
requirements under this paragraph of the order is not applicable.

XVI a According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company is not required to be
Registered under Section 45 -1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

b According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company has not conducted
any Non banking financial or housing financial activities without valid certificate of
Registration from Reserve bank of india as Reserve bank of India act,1934

¢ According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that that the Company is not a core
investment company as defined in the regulations made by the reserve bank of India.
Accordingly, reporting requirements under this paragraph of the order is not applicable.
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d According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, we are of the opinion that there no core investment companies in
the group

XVII Based on the review of audited financial statements, the company has incurred cash
loss of Rs 26.10 lakhs during the year and of Rs 20.17 lakhs in the immediately preceding
financial year.

XVIII During this year no other statutory auditors have resigned and as such reporting
requirements under this paragraph is not applicable.

XIX On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the board of directors and management plans, we are of the
opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report the company is
capable of meetings its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet date as and when they
fall due with in a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

XX According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company does not fulfill
the criteria as specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause (xx) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

XXI The reporting under clause (xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect
of said clause under this report..

PLACE: BANGALORE FOR GIRISH MURTHY & KUMAR
Chartered Accountants

BRAHMAV Digitally signed by

BRAHMAVAR

AR GIRISH GIrisHRAO
Date: 2023.04.27

RAO 22:09:26 +05'30'
Girish Rao B
Partner.
Membership No: 085745

FRN No.000934S
UDIN: 23085745BGYILZ7504

DATE: 27" April 2023
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Annexure B to Auditors’ Report of even date
Report on the Internal Controls on Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section (3)
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Re: Namitha Real Estates Private Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Namitha Real
Estates Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

PLACE: BANGALORE FOR GIRISH MURTHY &KUMAR
Chartered Accountants
DATE: April 27, 2023 Digitally signed by

BRAHMAVAR BRAHMAVAR GIRISH
GIRISH RAO RD/:?e: 2023.04.27

22:09:48 +05'30'
Girish Rao B
Partner.
Membership No: 085745
FRN No0.000934S
UDIN: 23085745BGYILZ7504
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Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Statement of standalone assets and kiabilities - -

_{ Amount in Fhousands)
s As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
Pasticulars (Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
a)| Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 466 636
Capital work in progress
Investment Property under development 2,41,930 2,253,381
Financial assets
[Non-cusrent tax assets (net) 0.35 0.35
Other non current assets - -
2,42,396 2,24,018
b)|Current assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 185 68
Other financial assets - -
HOthcr current assets 130 130
315 198
TOTAL ASSETS (a+b) 2,42,711. 2,24,216
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
W Equity
[Eqquity share capital 100 100
Cther equity (23,578) (20,967)
Total equity (23,478) {20,867)
b Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1,51,389 1,40,130
Trade payables
Other financial Tabilities 1,02,660 91,830
Provisions
Deferred tax liahilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities
2,54,049 2,31,960
c){Current Liabilities
|Financial liabilities
‘Trade Payable
Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises - - i
Due to others 1,023 931
Othet financial labiities 55 60
Other current Habilities 11,062 12,131
12,120 13,123
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES {atb+tc) 242,711 2,24,216
For Girish Murthy & Eumar For and on behalf of the board of directors
Firm registration numbsar: 0009348 Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Chartef ts
2 e, YA
~— )
X
Srinivasa Rao Sum Arivu Chelvan R
B Rao Director Director
Parfner DIN no: 07505557 DIN po: 03391559

Membership no.: 85745

High Point {Y
Place: Bangalore
Dare: 27.04.2023

45, Palace Road,

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27.04.2023




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited

Amount in Thousands

~—

Statement of standalone financial results for Quarter and Year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars

Quarter ended Year Ended

31-Mar-23 31-Dec-22 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

(Refer Notes Below)

(Refer Note 1) Unaudited (Refer Note 1) Audited Audited

=

Continning Operations

Revenue

a) Revenue from operations
i) Sales/income from operations
i) Other operating income

Total revenue

2 |Expenses

: (a) Employee benefits expense
E (b} Finance costs

{c) Other expenses

'Total expenses

3 |Profit/(loss) from
expenge (1-2)

hefore litems and tax

T

4 |Exceptional items

5 (Profit/(loss) from continuing operations before tax expenses 34
6 [Tax expenscs of continuing operations

(2) Current tax

(b) Adjustment of tax realting to ealier periads
(€) Deferred tax

7 |Profit/ (loss) after tax from continping operatons (5 ¥ §)
8 |Other Comprehensive Income

(A} (@ Ieems that will not be rechssified to profit or loss
{if) Income tax relating to iters that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

() () Tems that wil! be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit oz loss

9 |Total other comprehensive income, net of tax for the respective periods

10 [Total comprebensive income for the respective periods (7 + 9) [comprising
Profit (loss) and Other comprehensive income (mee of tax) for the respective
periods]

U [Paid-up ecuity shace capital { face value Rs...10.per share)

Weighted average number of shares used in computing Eamings per share
Earnings per equity share

1) Basic/ Diluted before Exceptional iterns

if) Basic/ Diluted after Exceptional items

i} Basic/Diluted EPS from continued opemtions

as

25.73 14 5 140 57

336 626 871 2471 1,961

361 640 87¢ 2,61 2,018

(361 (540 (876) &61) 2,018)

®40) (876) (2611) (2013)

Z013)

(640) (876) (Z611) 2018)

00 100 100 1 100

10,600 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

(20L78)
(20L.78)
(20178)

(36.13)
(36.13)

@6.13)

{63.99)
(63.9%)
(63.99)

(87.59)
(87.59)
©7.59)

(26109
(261.09)
(261.09)

The figures of the quarter ended March 31, 2023 and March 3 1, 2022 are the batancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the

unaudited year to date figures upto the third quarter of the relevant financial years,

For Gisish Murthy & Kusnar
Firmn cegistmation number: 0009348
C ced Accoun

4302,
High Point 1y

Place: Bangalore
Date: 27.04.2023

For and on hehalf of the hoard of directors
Namitha Real Fstates Private Limited
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Ariva Chelvan R
Director
DIN ao: 03391559
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Directer
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Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27.04,2023



Namitha Renl Estates Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2023

Amount in Thousands
Particulars Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property , Plant and Equipment 3 466 636
lwvestment Property under development 4 2,41,930 2,23,381
inancial assets - -
Non-current tax assets (net} 5 0.35 0.35
2,42,396 2,24,018
Current assets -
Financial Assets -
Cash and cash equivalents 6 185 68
Dther financial assets - -
Cther current assets 7 130 130
' 315 198
Total assets 2,42,711 2,24,216
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 8 100 100
Other Fquity 9 -23,578 -20,967
Total Equity (23,478) (20,867)
LIABTLITIES - -
Non-current liabilities - -
Financial Liabilities - -
Long-term borrowings 10 1,51,389 1,40,130
Other financial liabilities Note 12 (a) 1,02,660 91,830
2,54,049 2,31,960
Current liabilities - -
Financial Liabilities - -
Trade Payable - -
Due to micro enterprises and small enterprises 1 - -
Due to others 11 1,023 931
Other financial Habilities Note 12 (b) 35 60
HOr.her cuzrent Habilitics 13 11,062 12,131
12,140 13,123
Total Liabilities 2,66,189 2,45,082
‘Total Equity and Liabilities 242,71 2,24,216
Significant Accounting Policies & Disclosures 1&2
Corporate information about the Company 1
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial st 3-28

For Girish Murthy & K

High Point IV
45, Palace Road,
Bangalore-1

Place: Bangalore
Date: 27.04.2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors
Namitha Real Estates Private Limited

NS~

N ..
-é &u\,\\/\l o
Srinivasa Rao Sum Arivu Chelvan R
Director Director

DIN no: 03391559

DIN ne: 07505557

Place: Hyderabad -
Date: 27.04.2023




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2023 {Amount in Thousands.)
Particulars Notes March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
income
Revenue from operations - -
Other income 14 - -
Finance income - -
Total Income - -
|Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 15 140 57
Other expenses 16 2471 - 1,961
Total Expenses 2,611 2,018
Profit/{loss) before exceptional items and tax (2,611) {2,018)
{Exceptional itemns - -
Profit/{loss) before and tax (2,611) {2,018}
[1) Current tax - -
(2) Adjustment of tax refating to earlier periods - -
{3) Deferred tax ~ -
Income tax expense - -
Profit/(loss} for the year [2,611)) (2,018}
Other Comprehensive Income
Other comp sive i to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Exchange differences on transhtion of foreign operations - -
Income tax effect - -
Other comprehensive incotte not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
|periods: _ _
Income tax effect - -
Re-measurement (fosses) / gains on post employment defired benefit plans - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year- (B} - -
 Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (2,611) (2,018)
Earning Per Share 17 (261.09) {201.78)
Corporate information about the Company 1
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 3-28

For Girfsh Murthy & Kumar
Firm registration number;

B Girish
iZ?")
mbership no.; 85745

Place: Bangalore
Date: 27.04.2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors
Namitha Real Estates Private Limited

'%‘é\‘/-(,q:{kb&a W\J

Srinivasa Rao Suru Arivu Chelvan R
Director " Director

DIN no: 07505557 DIN no: 03391559
Place: Hyderabhad

Date: 27.04.2023




Namitha Realestates Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for Year ended March 31, 2023

Amount in Thousands

Equity share capital
Particulars o i Resarve and surpius Items of OCI Total equity
Retained earnings
|As at 1st April'2021 100 {18,949} - {18,849),
Changes in equity due to prior period errars - - - -_1
Restated balance as at 01-Apr2021 100 {18,949} - {18,849}
Profit for the period/movement - {2,018) - {2,018}
Other comprehensive income - - - -
As at 31st March'2022 100 {20,967) f {20,867)
As at 1st April'2022 100, (20,967) B {20,867)
Changes in equity due to prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance as at 01-Apr'2022 100 {20,967) - (20,867}
Profit for the period - {2,611} - (2,611}
Other comprehensiva income - - - -
As at 315t March, 2023 100 (23,578) - (23,478}
For Girish Murthy & Kumar For and on behalf of the board of dizectors
Firm registration number: (109345 Namitha, Real Estates Private Limited
Chartered Accountants

-

B
drtner
Membetship no.: 85745

Rao

High Point I

Place: Bangalore 5’ P&IECE ROEd

Dater 27.04.2023

e
S Sl P

Srinivasa Rao Suru
Director
DHN no: 07505357

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 27.04.2023

Arivu Chelvan R
Director
DIN no: 03391559




Namithz Real Estates Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31,2023 Amount in Thousands
Pardculats March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
CASH FLOW ¥ROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit/(Loss) before Tax {2,611} (2,018
Profit / (loss) before tax expenses - (2,611) (2,018)
Adjustments to reconcile (Toss) / profit before tax to net cash Hows
Finance costs - -
Interest income on bank deposits and athers - -
Operating profit before working capital changes (2,611) (2,018)
[Movements in working capital :
[Increasef{decrease) in trade payables 92 219
= in other ficancial assets -
I{ in ether financizl lisbilities 10,825 15,872
Decrease / (fuerease) In olher assets - 500
Decrease / (increase) current assets - (80
Increase/{dacreasc) in ether Nabilities (1,069} 1,111
Cash generated fram operations 7,237 15,603
Direct taxes paid - {0.35)
|Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 7,237 15,603
CASH FLOW (USED IN) / FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in PPE ; 171 47
Increase in capitzl work in progess {18,549} (17,23%)
Interest received - -
edemption/{prrcbasc} of fixed deposits
Decrease / (Increase) long term loans and advances
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) {18,378) (17,186),
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
I'roceeds from long-term borrowings 11,259 1,330
Bepayment of long-term bosrowings - -
Finanee costs paid - -
Incroase/ (decrease) in interest accrued on Long Term bastowings -
Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including secutities premium and net of
related securities issue expenses) - -
Repayment of short-term borrowings
Repayment of debentures - -
Net cash flow {(used in} / from financing activities (C) 11,259 1,330
JiNet (decrease) / intcrease in eash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) 17 . (253)r
Cash and cash equivalents at heginning of the year 68 320
Cagh and cash equivalents at year end 185 68
COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand - -
FWith banks- on ceoeent account 185 63
- on deposit account -
‘Total cash and cash equivalents {note 5) 185 65
Noze:
Amendment to Ind AS 7

Effective April 1, 2017, the company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which requires entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial smtements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes asising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a
reconciliation hetween the opening and closing balances in the balance for liabilites axsing from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement. The
econciliation is given as below:

Non Cash chang,
Particulars 01-04-2022 Cash Flows Fair Value changes | Others 31-03-2023
Long Term Borrowings 140,130 11,259 1,51,359
Corporate information about the Company 1
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanyiitg notes are an integral part of the financial statements 3-28 -
¥or Girish Murthy & Eumar For and on behalf of the board of directors
Firm registration numbyer: Namitha Real Estates Private Eimited
7 A
SLAVINEN
Srinivasa Rac Surn Azivu Chelvan R

E Girisl Director
P DIN no: 67505857
embership no.: 85745
Place: Bangalore
Date: 27.04.2023

_ Place: Hydesabad
Date: 27.04.2023




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to IND AS Accounts

Note:1

1. Corporate Information

Namitha Real Estates Private Limited domiciled in India and incorporated on 22nd September 2008. The
company to carry on the business of Real Estate & Property Development and Construction of alt kinds of
infrastructure and super structures. The company’s Holding company is GMR SEZ and Part Holding
Limited and ultimate holding company is GMR Pawer and Urban Infra Limited/GMR Enterprises Private
Limited. :

The registered office of the company is located in Bangalore in Karnataka, India.
Information on other related party relationships of the Company is provided in Note 18

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 27
April, 2023 '

2. Significant Accounting Policies
A. Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {ind AS), under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair values, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) (to the extent notified). The
Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policy hitherto in use. '

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR).

B. Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IND AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to IND AS Accounts

b. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

iN Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged cr used to settle a liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when it is:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

if) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
jii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlemeant of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporiing period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.

C. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition: ‘

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
{a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
{b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Fixed Assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment.
Such cost includes the expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset are derecognised when replaced. Further, when each major inspection
is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit and loss during the reperting period in which they are incurred.




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to IND AS Accounts

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is
derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

d. Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on the Property plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates |
arrived at, based on useful lives estimated by the management, which coincides with the lives prescribed
under Schedule i of the Companies Act, 2013 except for assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000
which are fully depreciated in the year of of acquisition

The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are fikely to be used. The residual values, useful lives and method of
depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

Depreciation charges for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that revised
carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its remaining useful life.

e. Investment properties

Since there is no change in the functional currency, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value for all of its investment property as recognised in its Indian GAAP financial statements as deemed
cost at the transition date, viz., 1% April 2015.

Investment properties are measured Initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if
the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All
other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of investment property
less their residual values over their useful lives specified in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in
the case of assets where useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the life so determined.
Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment property. Freehold fand and properties
under construction are not depreciated.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to IND AS Accounts

performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model recommended by
the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been dispesed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in
profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

f. Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure
is incurred.

intangible assets include software and their useful lives are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

g. Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets like the Software licence are amortised over the useful life of 6 years as estimated by the
management.

h. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to IND AS Accounts

[} Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. ‘

i} Company as a lessee :

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

ii} Right-of-use assets

"The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumuiated depreciation and impairment fosses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment."

- At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (inciuding in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably cerfain
ta be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories} in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

iif) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recégnition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

iv} Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to IND AS Accounts

for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned. :

“Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.”

"Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and
loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

a. another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem of the user’'s benefit even
if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

b. the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because
of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met."

J) Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.
However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above
cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis and includes all applicable costs in hringing goods
to their present locations and condition.

k) Impairment of non-financial assets

As at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment
properties, intangible assets and investments in associates and joint ventures determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets
are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. Goodwill and the intangible
assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is determined:

(i} in case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

(il)in case of a cash generating unit {a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows),
at the higher of the cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose .- edis
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rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average cost of capital of the company suitably
adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset).

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
such deficit is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss
and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
this purpose, the impairment loss recognised in respect of a cash generating unit is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to such cash generating unit and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets of the cash generating unit on a pro-rata basis.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
is recognised for the asset {or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

1} Provisions, Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets, and Commitments

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying ecanomic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability, When discounting is used, the increase
in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost."

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order {net of advances) issued to parties for completion of
assets

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet
date.
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m) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial
guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from
the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. In case of interest free or concession loans/debentures/preference shares
given to associates and joint ventures, the excess of the actual amount of the loan over initial measure at
fair value is accounted as an equity investment.

Investment in equity instruments issued by associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less
impairment.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and
of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial
instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period,

(a) Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a
business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
cutstanding.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is
carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at amortised cost
and fair value through profit or loss.

For financial assets whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance
equal to twelve months expected credit losses is recognised. Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses is recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has significantly increased since
initial recognition.

De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under
ind AS 109.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recogmses a collateralised horrowing for
the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount
measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit
or loss.

For trade and other receivables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classificaticn as debt or equity

Financial [iabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after
ded ucting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is
significant, Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of horrowings is
recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be

. made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment

when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee.

De-recoghnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceiled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original Hability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right fo offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simuftaneously.

i. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of
the Company’s cash management.
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j- Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

if) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. ‘

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbservable

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period."

The Company determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued operations. The Valuation Committee
comprises of the head of the investment properties segment, heads of the Company’s internal mergers
and acquisitions team, the head of the risk management department, financial controllers and chief
finance officer.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial
assets, and significant liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Selection criteria_include market
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knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. Valuers are
normally rotated every three years.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis,
the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair
value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is
reasonable. - ‘

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liahility and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value.

n)} Revenue recognition

Revenue Is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being made. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually
defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The
Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary
obligor in all the revenue arrangements as 1t has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory and
credit risks.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options} but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Other interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount
outstanding and the rate applicable

Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generaily
when shareholders approve the dividend.

o) Taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.
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Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 1961

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to
the underlying transaction either in QCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.”

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying values
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of the taxable profit and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability model.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all the taxable temporary differences. In contrast,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in eguity.

Deferred tax assets-and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) paid in accordance with the tax law in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in form of availability of set off against future income tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax assets in balance sheet when the assets can be
measured reliably and it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the assets will be
realised.

p) Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR') expenditure
The Company charges its CSR expenditure during the year to the statement of profit and loss.
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Note No.3 - Property, Plant and Equipment ( as at March 31,2023)

Amount in Thousands

. Computing Furniture &
Particulars Office Equipments Equipments Fixtures Total
Gross Block { at cost)
as at April 3, 2021 202 357 211 770
Additions - B8 - 38
Disposais -
-_as on March 31, 2022 202 445 211 858
Gross Block { at cost)
as at April 1, 2022 202 445 211 858
Additiens - - - -
Disposals -
a5 on March 31, 2023 202 445 211 858
Depreciation
@s at April 1, 2021 0.08 85 2 87
Charge for the year 29 24 21 135
Disposals - -
as on March 31, 2022 30 169 23 222
as at April 1, 2022 30 169 23 222
Charge for the year 29 120 21.43 171
as on March 31, 2023 59 289 45 392
Net Block as on March 31, 2022 173 276 188 636
Net Block as on Mar 31, 2023 143 156 166 466
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Note ¢
Particulars as at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2022
Investment property under development Amouar in Th d A in Tk d
Land 1,089,072 1,09,072
Lepal and professional fees 15 15
Interest costs 1,26,783 1,08,404
Civil Works 2,600 2,600
Land Conversion Charges 1,732 1,732
Eand Levelling and Filling 906 906 -
Right of Access (Road) 1,744 1,744
Cither expenses 311 140
(i) 2,143,163 224,614
Less: Other income
TInterest income on bank deposits 1,030 1,030
Interest Receivable on Loans 203 203
(i) 1,233 1,233
'Total - (i) = (i) - (i) 2,41,930 2,23,381
Less: Apportioned over the cost of tanpible assets - -
(i) - -
Total - (v) = (iif) - (iv) 2,41,930 2,23,381
Motes:
a)Infc i garding and exp of Inv property:
Amount in Thousands
[Pacticulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Rentzl income detived from investment property - -
Less: Direct operating expenses (including repairs and - -
‘maintenance) generating rental income
Less: Direct operating expenses (including repairs and - -
maintenance) that did not generate rental income
Profit / (l0s5) arising from investment properties before - -
depreeiation.
Less: Deg for the year - -
Profit / (loss) adsing from & properties - -
b) Reconciliation of fair value
Amount in Thousands
As at Apsil 01, 2021 (Fair Value) 3,04,130
Fair value difference 8,040
Purchases during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 3,12,170
Fair value difference 30,630
Purchases during the year
As at March 31, 2023 3,42,800
c) Description of valuation techniques nsed and key inputs to val on inves pruperties;
Investment Properties Valuation technique Significant unobservable Range (weighved average)
inputs
'The Company’s investment properties under developement March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
consist of Landds as on 31-March-2023 is 80.440 Ac ( 2s on 31-
Mat-2022 is 80.440 acres) located in Chinnapalem Village and  [GLR {Guide Line Rate) will
Dt Village Kothavalasa Mandal Vizianagacam mthod Redllkhato 43 | oo o jokhs to 39 lakhs
District, Andhapradesh. ks :

"The Company's investment property consistof 80.44 Acres (s on 31" March,2022- 80.4¢ Acees) ofland in Chinnapalem Village and Datli Village Kothavalasa Mandal Vizianagaram
District, Andhapradesh in India. As at 31st March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the fair values of the properties are INR 34,28,00,000/- 2nd INR 31,21,70,000/- respectively. These values
are based on valuations performed by an external valuation expert as an 31st Decemnber, 2022, The Management of the company is of the view that the valuation of lands is appropriate

and has not changed from the valuation date i.e. Dec’2022 to March 31°2023.

Valuation Technique - The valuation has been done on Sales comparison method . Sales comparison method establishes value of 20 asset through the analysis of recent
transactions/sales or offerings/allotment prices of comparable assets. For valuation of specified SEZ /industrial /agriculral land, prevailing market rate of land around the site
inspection date based on recent transaction rates or quated rates applicable for similar type of land in the near by locality has been considered as the basis and also after making

enquities with Jocal real estate agents/dealers operating in respective micro market and also relying on various data sources to establish the prevailing market rate of similar type of land

around the valuation date




Note 5 -Noo-current tax assets Amount in Thousands Amount in Thousands
Particulars as at March 31,2023 as at Magch 35,2022
Ind AS . Ind AS

Long-term Eoans and advance
Capital advances - -
Secutity deposit - -
Loan and advances o telated parties - -
Advance tax .35 .35
'TDS certificate Receivble/Received - -

0.35 .35

Note 6

Cash and Bask balances Amount in Tt d: Amount in Thousands
Particulars ag at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2022

Cash and Bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

— On current accounts. 184 66
Cash on hand 1 1
‘Total 185 68
Other bank balances
— Deposits with ordginal maturity forless than 3 months
— Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months
‘Toral - -
Arnount disclosed under non-current assets
firand Total 185 48
Note 7
Other current assets Amount in 'Fhousands Amount in Thousands

Particulars as at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2022
Advances recoverable in cash or kind 50 30
Advances to employees for expenses 80 80

Security Deposits — U d idered good -

Total 130 110




Note 10
Long term borrowyings Amount in Thousands Amount in Thousands

Particulars

ag at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2022

Long term bomowings
Other loans and advances
Loan from a group company (unsecured) 1,51,389 1,40,130
‘Total 1,51,389 1,460,130
Note :

As on 51.03.2022, the company had the following borrowings: Rs.12.46 Cts from GMR Power Urban Infra Limited, Rs.1.06 Cr
from GMR Highways Eimited, Rs.0.32 Cr frem Honey Flower Estates Private Limited and Rs. 0,10 Cr from GMR SEZ & Porr
Holdings Limited at an interest rate of 12.25% pa for a period of 3/5 years. As on 31st March 2021, the company had Rs. 13.88
ceeres of Jong term borrowings.

Churing the FY2021-22, the company has availed additional loan of Rs. 0.13 ctores from GMR SEZ & Port Heldings Limited at
an interest rate of 12.25% pa for a period of 3 years. . As on 31st March 2022, the company has Rs. 1401 Grs of long term
borrowings.

Dhucing this FY2022-23 , the company has paid the entire Loan amount of Rs 1.00 Crores to GMH Highways Limited and taken
further Loan amount of Rs 1.73 crs from GMR. Highways Limited at an interest mt= of 12.25% p.a for a perind of 3 years and
also taken additional Loan of Rs 0,63 ers from Honey Flower Estates Private Ltd and also has taken further Loan amount of Rs
0.335 crs from GMR SEZ & Portholdings Limited and repaid the Loan of Rs 0,568 crs to GMR SEZ & Portholdings Ltd . As on

H st March'23, the company has Rs 15.13% ers of long tern boreowings

Note 11

Trade Payaile Amoynt in Thonsands Amoant in Thovpsands
Particulars 28 at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2622

Provision for expenses 247 155

Dues to creditors gther than micre and small enterprizes ki T

"Total 1,023 931

Note 12 (3)

Qther financia) liabifities- Non curvent Amonat in Thousands Amount in Thousands
Particulars as at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2022

Non trade payable (Group Companies)-Interest Acerued but not - -

due on barrawings from Group companies

Interest acerized but not due on Unsecured Loans-Frem Group 1,802,660 91,830

companies

Non trade payable - -

Total 1,02,660 91,830

Note 12 (b)

Other financial liabilities- Curreat Amount in Thousands Amount in Thousands
Particulars as at March 31,2023 as at March 31,2022

Non trede payable (Group Companies)-Interest Accrved and - -

due on barowings

Interest accrued but hot due or Unsecured Losns-From Group - -

Companies

Non ttade payable 55 50

‘Totak 55 60

Note 13

Gther current Babilities A in Thousands Amountin Th d
Particulare as at March 31,2023 28 at March 31,2022

Advance Received from Customer 10,900 10,900

Other statutory dues (TDS) 162 1,231

'Total 11,062 12,131
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Note B

Share capital Amount in Thousands
Particulars IndAs IndAs
Authorised shate capital March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Number __ Rs. (Ind AS) Nimmber Rs. (Ind AS)
At 1 April 2021 10,000 100 10,000 100
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - -
At 31 March 2022 16,000 100 10,000 160
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - -
At December 31,2022 10,000 100 10,000 100
Issued equity capital
At 1 April 2621 10,000 100 10,000 160
Increase/{decrease) during the year - - -
At 31 March 2022 10,000 100 10,600 100
Increase/(decrease) during the year - - - -
At March 31,2023 10,000 10¢ 10,000 160
b) Shares held by holding/ ultimate holding company and/ or their subsidiaries/ associates:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars Number Rs. (Ind AS) Number Rs. (Ind AS)
10,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 0,000 100 10,000 100
Total 10,000 100 10,000 100
<) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the com pany:
March 31, 2023 Mazch 31, 2022
Particulars Number | Rs. (Ind AS) Number Rs. (Tnd AS) |
GMR SEZ & Port Holding Limited; the immediate holding company 10,060 100 10,000 100
toghether with its nominees. :
Total 10,000 100 10,000 100
(D) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Name of shareholder N‘;:fusl:‘i’::es % of holding N°‘°st]]:i:°S ™ % of holding
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up
GMR SEZ & Port Holding Limited (Formely known as-GMR
SEZ & Port Holding Pyt Lid )and its nominees, the immediate 10,000 100% 10,000 160%
holding company,

Note : As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/ members and other declaration received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

Note 9
Other Equity

Amount in Thousands

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Surplus in the statement of profit and Joss

Opening

(20,967)

(18,949)

During the period

(2,611)

(2,018)

Total

(23,578)

(20,967)

Equity contribution from parents - Related party loan

COpening

During the period

Total

‘Total

(23,578)
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Note 4
Other Income Amonntin Th d. Amount in Thonsands
Panticulars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
IndAS IndAS
|Interest - -
‘Total - -
Note 15
Emplayee benefit expenses Amount in Th d Amount in Th d
Particnlars March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
IndAS IndAS
Staff welfare expenses 140 ] 57
Total 140 57
Now 16
Other expenses Amount in Thousands  Amount in 'T1 d
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Particulars
IndAS IndAS
Advertising and Business promotion 2 -
Electricity and water charges 56 13
Insusance - -
Repairs & maintinance-Others 1,248 464
Rates and taxes 698 3
Lease Rent 18 294
Vehicle running & maintenance [ 35
Piating and stationery 8 (thers 8 15
Books & periodicals 1 7
Bad debts / adv w/off - 500
Communication costs 10 15
Travelling and conveyance 383 231
Manpower hice charges - 70
Legal 2nd professional fees 3 16
Remuneration to auditor 34 33
Security expenses - 253
Bank chacges 0.32 1
Miscellaneous expenses 0.00 10
'Total 2471 1,961 I
Note,17
Eamings per share ("EPS")

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the proft/ Ioss for the year atisibutable to equity shareholders of the parent by the
weighted average number of equity shases outstanding dusing the year. Partly paid equity shases are treated 45 a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends relative to 3 fully paid equity share during the reporting period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element
in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shates) that have changed the number of equity shaces

outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted EPS amounts are caloulated by dividing the profit attributable ta equity shareholders (after adjusting for interest on the
convertible secusities) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number
of equity shases that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into ecuity shares.

‘The follawing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and dilnted EPS cc

Amount in Thousands Amonnt in Thousands
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Face vlue of equity shares (Rs. per shase) 10 10
Profit/foss) attdbutable to equity shareholders (2,611) (2,018)
Weighted average numbers of equity shares used for computing ezening per
sh;fh(basic i o =y puting eeoning p 10,000 10600
EPS- Basic and dilated (261.09) (201.78)
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Note No 18

Relaled Party Transactions

(A) List of Related Party with whom transactions has taken place

Disclosures in respect of related parties as defined in Accountin
the year, are given below:

g Standard 18, with whom transactions have taken place during

List of Related Parties
$-No Name of the Company Nature of Relationship
1 GMR Enterprises Pt. Ltd, (GEPL) Ultimate Holding
Company
2 MR SEZ and Port Holding Ltd, {GSPHL) Holding Company
3 GMR Power and Urban infra Limited (GPLAIL) Ho[d!ng Company's
Halding Corrpany
4 GMR Highways Ltd {GHL} Feffow Subsidiary
5 GMR Krishnagiri SIR Limited Fellow Subsidiary
6 Honeyflower Estates Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
1. Trensactions with Related Parties Amount in Thousands
S.No Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
A) Transactions during the year
1 Loan from Greup companies
-GMR Power and Urban infra Limited - -
“GMR Highways Limited (10,000) -
-GMR Highways Limited 17,289 -
- GMR SEZ and Part Holding Pvt. Ltd (5,680) -
- GMR SEZ and Port Holding Pvt. Ltd 3,350 1,330
-Honey flawer Estates Pvt Ltd 6,300 -
z Interest on group cotnpany loans
-GMR Power and Urban infra Limited 15,264 15,264
- GMR Highways Limited 2,106 1,225
- Horey flower Estates Pvt Ltd 641 392
- GMR SEZ and Port Holding Pvt, Ltd 368 217
S.No Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022
A) Outstanding Balances at the year end
1 Issued Capital
- GMR SEZ and Port Holding Etd 100 100
2 Loan from Group companies
- GMR Power and Urban infra Limited 1,24,600 1,24,600
-GMR Highways ELimited 17,289 10,000
-Honey flower Estates Pvt Ltd 9,508 3,200
-GMR SEZ & Port Haldings Limted - 2,330
3 Creditors or interest acerued /Payable
-GMR Power and urban infra Limited 68,436 69,439
- GMR Highways Limited - 6,067
-GMR SEZ & Port Holdings Limted 36 36
~Honey flower Estates Pyt Ltd 420 420
4 Interest acerued but not due
~GMR Power and Urban infra Limited 29,367 14,112
- GMR Highways Limited 2,001 1,207
-Honey flower Estates Pyt Ltd 230 353
= GMR SEZ and Port Holding Ltd 465 185
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Commitments and Contingencies
I, Leages
Operating lease: Company as lessee

The company has entered into lease agreements as below and commitment is foreseen

Amount in Thousands
Lease rental charged 1o P&L 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
18 294
Lease rentals under cancellable leases and non-cancellable leases
Fuature minitnum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases Amount in Thousands
are ag follows:
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Within one year 230 280
After one year but not more than five years - -
More than five years - B
‘Total 280 280
11, Contingent Liabilities
Claims made against the company not acknowledged as debts - NIL
OI. Commitmentg Amount in Thousands
31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22

a.Bstimated amouat of Contracts remaining to be executed on
Capital Account and not provided for (Net of Advances)

Sundry Creditors includes Rs NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL) pertaining to Small Scale Industrizl Undertakings (SSI) to the extent such parties have
been identified from the available information/documents, There age ao 85I units to whom the company owes 2 sum exceeding Rs 1.00 Lakhs
and outstanding for more than 30 days (but not over due) as at 31st March 223,

There aze no Micto, Small znd Medium Entetprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are cutstanding for mare than 45 days as at 31st
march 2023, This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Mediam Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been
determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

The Company is planning to implement 2 Multi Product Industrial wait / Logistic Park in the project land which is situated in Chinnapalem &
Datti Villages of Kothavalasa Mandal, Vizianagaram District, Andhra Pradesh. The land is situated 2djacent to the Railway line & the management
expects 4 good pofential for menetising the same as industrial / logistic pads. The total extent envisaged for the project is 350 Ac and out of the
same, land {0 an extent of 80.44 acs have been acquired by the company till now. The comapry is in the pracess of acquiting the balance land.
The management has plans to develop the infrastructare like 10ad, water, powet, sewemge facitlies, loigistic facilities etc., and lease of sell the band

© as per dient's requirement. The compaay is in the process of getting necessary approvals from concetned departments of GoAP (VUDA. etc.)

and also finalisng development plans and appointing consuitants for project feasibility studies etc. The physical activity on the project land is
expected to start during Q2 of FY 2023-24.




Namitha Real Estates Private Limited
Notes to the Audited financial statements as at March 3, 2023

Note : 22

Capital management

The Company’s capital management is interdled to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-ter and
shoxt-term goals of the Company.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long-term and
short-term strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from
operations and sale of certain assets, long-term and short-term bank borrowings and issue of non-convertible / convertible
debt securities and strategic partanership with investors.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity resecves
attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capiral management is to maximise
the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the finandial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
Ppayment to shareholders, teturn capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company menitoss capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total debt divided by total capital plus debt. The Company includes within debt all the borrowings.

Amount in Thousands
Particulars At March 31,2023 At March 31, 2022

Borrowings ) 1,51,389 1,460,130
Trade payables (Note-12) 1,023 _ 931
Other payables (Note-13 (a) & 13 (b) ) 1,02,715 91,890
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note-7) (185) (68)
Total debt (Net) (i) 2,54,942 2,32,883
Capital Components

share Capieal 100 100
Other equity (23,578) {20,967)
"Total Capital (23.478) ) (20,867)
Capital and net debt (i) 2,351,464 2,12,016
Gearing ratio (%)  (i/ii) 110% 110%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensere that it
meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements.
Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have
been no breaches in the financial covenants of atty fnterest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current pedod.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31,2023
and year ended March 31, 2022, :
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Nete No.23
Discl on Fi Jal i

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional fnformation an balance sheet items that

contin financial instruments.

(2) Financial assets and Habilities

As at March 31, 2023

Amount in Theusands

Pair value through
; other Fair value through . “Total Total
Particulats comprehensive profix or loss Amortised cust Carrying value Fair value
X income

Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalenss - - 185 185 185
(i) Trade Receivables - -
() Loans . - - - -
(iv) Other financiaf assets - - -
Total - - 185 185 185
Financial liabilities - -
) Botrowings 1,51,382 1,51,389 151,389
(i) Trade payables 1,023 1,023 1,023
(1) Other financial liahilities 1,02,660 1,02,560 1,02,660
Total - - - 2,55,072 2,55,072 2,55,011
As at March 31, 2022

Amount in Thousands

Fair value through
icul other Fair value through N Taotal Total
Bartic comprehensive profit orloss Amoriised cost Carrying value Fair value
income

Financial assets
() Cash and cash equivalents - - 68 68 68
(i) Trzde Receivables - -
(iif) Loans - - . _
(iv) Other financial assets - - -
Tatal - - 68 68 68
Financial liabilities - - - -
(3 Borrowings 1,406,130 1,40,136 140,130
(i) Trade payables 931 931 931
(i) Othes financial liabiities 91,830 91,830 91,830
Total - - 2,32,801 2,32,891 2,32,8%1




Namltha Real Estates Private Limited
Standalone summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2023

24 Note- (Refer Trade payable Sehno: 11 )

New as perthe

of Division 1l of Schedule lit to the Act

A Agelng schedule of frade payabtes

mom o aw

Amoun In Thousands
As a1 31 March 2023 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Less than 1 year| 1-2 years 2-3 years Wore than 3 years
Micro, small and medium
axtarprises
Others 247 - riti - 1,023

Dispuled dues — MSME
Disputed dyes — Others

Amount in Thousands
As at 31 March 2022 utstanding from the due date of payment Total
Lessthan1 year] 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Micro, small and madium
exterprises

Dispuled dues — MSME - - -
Dispited dues — Qthers

Tille deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company Is NIL and not applicable :
The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

‘The Company does not have ay ions/ ball with

mpanies stnuck off under section 248 of Compenies Act, 2013 to the best of knowledge of Company's management.

The Company has not traded o invested fimds in Crypio carrency of Vinual currency.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested finds (¢ither borrowed Fonds ar share premium or any other sources or kind of fonds) 1o any other person(s) or entity(ies), ingluding
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the und ding tiat the 1 diary shall
(i) directly or indirectly lend ¢r invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whaisoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiares

The Company has rot received any fund [rom any personis) o entity(ies), incliding foreign entities(Funding Party} with the understating (whether recorded in writing or ctherwise) that the
Cempany shall:

(i) direedy or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf’ of the Funding Party (IMimate Beneficiaries) or

{it} provide any guarantee, security or the Like o behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiades
The Company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank of finangial institution of other lender.
The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions) under Income Tax Act, 1961,




Namitha Real Estates Private Eimited
Standalone summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2023

25 Note -
Financlal ratlos 1
[Ratia Measurement Numerator Denominater Asat As at Variance Remarks
unit 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Ratio Ratla
Current ratio Current assets Currant liabillties Due {0 decrease the
statatory Liability (TDS )
0.03 0.02 2% during this year compared
{to Last year
Debt-equity ratio Total debt [Total equity MNote 1A below
[Non-curent bormowings + Current {6.45) (8.72) -4%
borrowings]
Debt service coverage ratio Eamings befare depreciation and T (including cap {Note 1A below
amortisation and interest + Principal repayment (ncluding
[Eamings = Profit afler tax + Depreciation and |prepayments} {0.17) - #Diviol
amartisation expense + Finance cosls
excluding interast on lease liahilities)

[Retarn on equfty ratio Profit afler tax wverage of total eguity 0.12 0.10 16% cle 1A halow
Inventory tumover ratio Costs of materfals consumed Averaga invantories - - - ole 1A betow
Trade receivables lumaver Revenue from oparations Average trade receivables R R . ole 1A below
ratio
Trade payahles tumaover ratio {Furcheses Average trade payables - - ~__|Note 1A below
Net capital tumover ratio Revenue fram operations 'Working capital R Nole 1A below

[Current assets - Current liabilties . -

Net profit ratio Profit after tax Revenus fram operations. - - - Nole 1A belew
|Return on capital employed Eamings before depreciation and Capital employed Nole 1A below

amortisation, interest and tax [Total assets - Current fiabilities +

E‘Eamfngs_= P;?]El after tax + Tax expenSf + [Current borrowings) 0.0 01 18%

Finance costs (exciuding interest on lease

liabilities;
Return on investment [Interast income (Finan¢e income } Investment - - - MNole 1A below

Note 1
A ' Reason for variation of more than 25%




Namitha Realestates Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

26

Where there is movement/ balance in financial activities in cash flow

JAmendment to Ind AS 7

Effective April 1, 2017, the company adopted the amendment to Ind AS 7, which requires entities to provide disclosures that

Amount in Thousands
|Particulars 01-04-2022 |Cash Flow Non Cash Changes 31-03-2023
Fair Value Others
Changes
|Long Term Borrowings 1,40,130 11,259 1,51,389

Short Term Borrowing




Namitha Realestates Private Limited
Notes to the Audited financial statements as at March 31, 2023

Note : 27
Financial rick management objectives and policies

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed pamarily to fluctuations in foreign cuscency exchange rates, intefest rates, aquity prices, liquidity and exedit sisk, which may
adversely impact the fair value of its financial instruments. The Company has » tsk management policy which net anly covers the foreign exchange risks but also other risks
associzted with the finuncial assets aad liabilities such as interest mate risks and credit sisks. The risk management policy is approved by the Board of Dirgetors. The risk
management framework aims to:

(i) create a stable business planning environment by reducing the impact of currency and interest rate fluctuations on the Company’s business plan.

(#) achieve greater predictability to earnings by determining the finzncial value of the expected earnings in advance.

Market rigk

(a) Market risk- Interest rate rsk

interest rate risk 35 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fimancial inserument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in markee interest rates relates primadly to the Company’s loag-term and short-term. debt abligations with floating interest rates.

"The Company manages its interest rate xisk by having a balanced portfolic of fixed and varible rate loans and borrowings.

(b) Market risk- Foreign enrmency risk

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the consolidated statement of profit and loss and equity, where any tmnsaction references more
than one curency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a corrency other than the functional currency of the respective consolidated entities, Considemmag the countries
and economic environment in which the Company vperates, its operations are subject to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries.

‘The Company has entered into certam derivative contracts which are not designated as hedge. Refer note xxx for details.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the tisk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial Ioss. Financial nts that are
subject to credit risk and concentration thereof principally consist of trade receivables, loans receivables, investments, cash and cash equivalents, decivatives and fnancial
graraatees provided by the Company.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to credit risk manap, An
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company does not holil collateral as security,

Tha Camasnn’s svanome tn cictomare ie dimarcifiad and thars ic nn cancanmation aF cadie cicl woith seasct te ane nastinrlae Aetames ae 26 March 31 9017 March 21 9 & aad
With respect to trade receivables / unbilled revenue, the Company has constituted the temns to review the receivables on 2 periodic basis and to tzke necessary mitigations,
wherever required. The Company creates allowance for all imsecused receivables based on lifetime expected credit loss based on a provision nuatriv. The provision matrix takes
fato arcount historical credit 1oss experience and is admsted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the receivables that are
due and the rates used in the provision matrix.

Credit zisk from balances with bank and financial institutions i3 managed by the Company’s treasury depariment in accordance with the Company’s policy. I 1ts of suxplus
funds are made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The limits are set 1o minimise the congentration of sisks and therefore
mitigate financial loss through connterparty’s potential faflure to make payments.

In respect of fmancial puarantees provided by the Company to banks and firancial institutions, the maximum exposuee which the Company is exposed to is the mazimum
amount which the Company would have to pay if the guarantee is called upon. Based on the expectation at the end of the reporting pesiod, the Company considers that it is
more likely than not that such an amount will not be pagable under the guarantees provided.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannat meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and easure that
funds are available for use as per requirements. The Company has obmined fimd and non-fund based wocking capital lines from vazious banks. Furthermore, the Company bas
access to funds from debt marksts through convertble debentures, nop-convertible debentures, bonds and other debt instruments. The Company invests its surplus fonds in
bank fixed deposit and in mutual funds, which carries no or low market gisk.

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds on a regular basis. The Company’s objective #s to maintain a balnce between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank overdrafts, bank loags, debentures, preference shares, sale of assets and sirategic partnership with investors etc.

The following table shows a maturity analysis of the anticipated cash flows including interest obligations for the Company’s financial labilities on an undiscounted basis, which
therefore differ from both cazryping walue and fair value. Floating rate interest is estimated nsing the prevailing interest zate at the end of the reporting period

Amount in Thousands
Particulars 0-1year 1 1o 5 yearg > 5§ years Total
March 31, 2023
Borcowings (other than convertible preference shares) - 1,51,389 - 1,51,389
Convertible preference shares - g - -
Other financial liabilites 35 1,02,660 - 1,062,715
 Trade payables 1,023 - - 1,023
Total 078 2,54,049 - 2,55,121
March 31, 2022
Bigrrowings {other than convertble preference shares) -] 1,40,130 - 1,40,130
Convertible preference shares ] ] . N
Other financinl Liabilities 60 91,830 - 91,890
 Trade payables 931 - 931
[Total oot 2,31,960§ - 2,352,951




(i) The above exchrdes any financial liabilities arising out of financial guarantee contract

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similasly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Cotnpany's pedormance to developments affecting a pasticular industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of sk, the policies and procedures of the Company include speci;ﬁc guidelines to focus en the mzinterance of a diversified postfolio.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

Note:28

Recent accounting proncuncements
*Ministry of Cerporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Tndin Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from
time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as belows

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose theit material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting
policies and include corresponding amendments to IND' AS 107 and TND AS 34, The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after
April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements,

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Hstimates and Ertors - This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adeption of this amendment
is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Incorne Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the indtial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and
offsetting temporary differences. Also there is corresponding amendment to IND AS 101. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annnal periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendenent and there is no impact o its financial staternent.

For Girish Murthy 8 Kumar For and on hehalf of the board of directors
Firm registration number: 0009348 Mamithz Realestates Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
s, (NN
- ‘6‘/\. U\/\ V\J\ €
B Girish Ra Srinivasa Rao Surn Arivu Chelvan R
Paftper Ditector Director
ership no.: 85745 DIN ne: 07505557 DIN ne: ¢3391559
High Paint fv
Place: Bangalore 48, Palacg Road, Place: Hyderabad

Date: 27.04.2023 Date: 27.04.2023
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